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1st Circuit holds defendant need not admit forfeiture allegations for acceptance of responsibility. (820) After extensive pretrial litigation, including an interlocutory appeal of a suppression issue, defendant pled guilty to a RICO indictment, but refused to admit its forfeiture allegations. In calculating defendant’s offense level under the Federal Sentencing Guidelines, the district court awarded him a two-level reduction for acceptance of responsibility under U.S.S.G. §3E1.1(a), but declined to give him an additional level off under §3E1.1(b) for timely notice of intent to plead guilty. In making its ruling, the district court alluded to the fact that the government was still obliged to prepare for a trial on the forfeiture issue. The First Circuit held that §3E1.1(b) requires only timely notification of an intent to plead guilty, and does not require a defendant to acquiesce in every aspect of the government’s proposed or preferred sentence. Because a criminal forfeiture is an aspect of the sentence, the court could not consider a refusal to consent to the forfeiture in granting or denying the one-level adjustment under §3E1.1(b). U.S. v. Cunningham, 201 F.3d 20 (1st Cir. 2000).xe "U.S. v. Cunningham, 201 F.3d 20 (1st Cir. 2000)."
2nd Circuit affirms upward departure for failure to per​form forfeiture agreement. (820) Defen​dants en​tered into an agreement with the government which provided that if they were found guilty of vari​ous RICO and fraud charges, they would pay the gov​ernment $22 million in lieu of forfei​ture or fines. Defendants were convicted but failed to make any of the installment payments re​quired by the agreement. The district court departed upward by two lev​els based on de​fendants' de​fault. It specifically found that defendants had commit​ted a fraud on the court because they were aware at the time they executed the agreement that they would be unable make their in​stallment payments within the specified time period. The 2nd Circuit affirmed. There was no evidence that the district court improperly placed on defen​dants the burden of proving their intent to perform the forfeiture agreement. The fact that the govern​ment could enforce the forfei​ture agreement by filing con​fessions of judg​ment did not make it unfair for the court to consider their fraud as a ground for de​parture. U.S. v. Paccione, 949 F.2d 1183 (2d Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Paccione, 949 F.2d 1183 (2d Cir. 1991)."
3rd Circuit says waiver of meritorious defenses to forfeiture may justify down​ward departure. (820) The Third Circuit held that although subjection to civil or criminal forfeiture is not a proper ground for a downward sentence departure under U.S.S.G. §5K2.0, see U.S. v. Shirk, 981 F.2d 1382, 1397 (3d Cir. 1992), a “voluntary surrender of meritorious defenses to forfeiture [as part of a plea bargain may] evidence an extraordinary acceptance of responsibility” meriting downward depar​ture. The case was remanded for further findings on whether defendant’s situation was “truly extraordinary.” [Ed. Note: Although the court hedged its opinion heavily with caveats about the expected rarity of departures on this ground, the decision holds out the possibility of a downward departure in virtually any case involving a plea agreement with a stipulated forfeiture. The only prerequisite for a colorable departure claim is the contention that in accepting the plea agreement the defendant waived some potentially valid challenge to the forfeiture.] U.S. v. Faulks, 143 F.3d 133 (3d Cir. 1998).xe "U.S. v. Faulks, 143 F.3d 133 (3d Cir. 1998)."
4th Circuit finds amount of forfeiture does not determine fraud loss. (820) While receiving disability payments arising from an on-the-job injury as a postal worker, defendant began smuggling marijuana. In order to continue receiving his disability payments, he was required to complete forms reporting self-employment or outside income. He failed to report his smuggling income on the forms, so the government charged and convicted him for making false statements to obtain federal worker’s compensation benefits, 18 U.S.C. §1920. At sentencing, the district court determined that the amount of loss under U.S.S.C. §2F1.1 was the total amount of benefits paid to defendant during the period covered by the forms containing false information, or $64,536. The Fourth Circuit disagreed. It held that the proper amount of loss was the difference between what defendant received and what he would have received had all the information on the forms been true. Even though the entire sum was forfeitable under 20 C.F.R. §10.529, that does not necessarily make the amount of forfeiture equal to the amount of the loss for sentencing purposes. U.S. v. Dawkins, 202 F.3d 711 (4th Cir. 2000).xe "U.S. v. Dawkins, 202 F.3d 711 (4th Cir. 2000)."
4th Circuit rules sentencing judge not bound by forfeiture judgment in estimating drug quantity. (820) Defendant was convicted of narcotics offenses and the criminal jury returned a forfeiture verdict in the amount of $1,000,000. Defendant argued that, when estimating the amount of drugs for which he should be held responsible under the Federal Sentencing Guidelines, the sentencing judge should have been bound by the forfeiture verdict. In other words, since the jury found that defendant should forfeit $1,000,000 in drug proceeds, the court should not impose a sentence under U.S.S.G. §2D1.1 based on a quantity of narcotics worth more than $1 million. The Fourth Circuit disagreed, citing U.S. v. Love, 134 F.3d 595, 605 (4th Cir. 1998), for the proposition that the “attempt to impose … forfeiture verdicts as artificial limitations on the district judge’s sentencing discretion turns 18 U.S.C. §3661 on its head.” U.S. v. Rhynes, 196 F.3d 207 (4th Cir. 1999). xe "U.S. v. Rhynes, 196 F.3d 207 (4th Cir. 1999)."
4th Circuit holds judge is not bound by jury’s criminal forfeiture verdict. (820) Defendants were convicted of marijuana and cocaine trafficking. The jury also returned criminal forfeiture verdicts against one defendant for $300,000 and another defendant for $0. At sentencing, the judge found one defendant responsible for more than 11,000 kilos of marijuana and the other for 544 kilos of marijuana. Defendants calculated backwards from the forfeiture verdicts, arrived at an estimate of the quantity of drugs the jury believed each defendant to be responsible for, and argued that the jury’s conclusions were inconsistent with the judge’s sentence. The Fourth Circuit disagreed: (1) The attempt to equate the dollar amount of the forfeiture verdict with a narcotics weight was flawed. (2) Even if the jury had returned an intelligible finding about drug quantity, a sentencing judge would not be bound by it in determining relevant conduct under U.S.S.G. §1B1.3. The appellate court also found “preposterous” the argument that the jury’s failure to find one of the defendants liable on the forfeiture count necessarily proved he was less culpable than other participants in light of evidence that the defendant in question acted as a “hit man” for the drug operation. U.S. v. Love, 134 F.3d 595 (4th Cir. 1998).xe "U.S. v. Love, 134 F.3d 595 (4th Cir. 1998)."
5th Circuit holds that forfeiture order is an ap​pealable "sentence" under §3742(b). (820) Defendant argued that the government was not au​thorized to appeal the district court's denial of its motion for forfeiture under 18 U.S.C. §1467. The 5th Circuit held that a forfeiture order is a "sentence" under 18 U.S.C. §3742(b) and thus is appealable. The sentencing guidelines treat forfeiture as part of the sentence to be imposed upon a defendant. U.S. v. Investment Enter​prises, Inc., 10 F.3d 263 (5th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Investment Enterprises, Inc., 10 F.3d 263 (5th Cir. 1993)."
7th Circuit says district judge may not “correct” sentence regarding application of forfeiture to fine. (820) In 1994, defendant received a sentence of prison and a fine for drug and money laundering offenses. The sentence also provided that the “proceeds realized” from a forfeiture would applied toward the fine. Four years later, after sale of the forfeited property realized less than the amount of the fine, the defendant petitioned the sentencing judge to “correct” the sentence to give him credit against the fine for the appraised value of the property at the time of sentencing rather than the actual amount realized at the time of sale. The district court refused, and the Seventh Circuit upheld that refusal. The court of appeals held that neither Fed. R. Crim. P. 35(c) nor Fed. R. Crim. P. 36 permitted what amounted to substantive alteration of the sentence so long after the sentence occurred. U.S. v. Jones, 165 F.3d 33 (7th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. Jones, 165 F.3d 33 (7th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished)."
8th Circuit rules losses of claimants in ancillary proceeding may not be added to fraud loss. (820) Defendant was convicted of defrauding investors in an electric car manufacturing project (the “Willmar Project”). Some of his assets were criminally forfeited. Investors in defendant’s earlier electric car schemes not charged in the indictment filed claims in the ancillary proceeding. The district court considered the losses of these claimants to be “relevant conduct” under the Federal Sentencing Guidelines, and added those losses to the losses of the investors in the charged scheme to generate a “loss” figure for purposes of sentencing under U.S.S.G. §2F1.1. The Eighth Circuit reversed. The government’s indictment made no mention of any electric car schemes prior to the Willmar Project, and at sentencing the government failed to show that the earlier losses were part of a single ongoing course of conduct which included the Willmar Project. Thus, the claims of the earlier investors should not have been included in either the fraud loss or the restitution amount. U.S. v. Ramirez, 196 F.3d 895 (8th Cir. 1999).xe "U.S. v. Ramirez, 196 F.3d 895 (8th Cir. 1999)."
Ninth Circuit holds that IRS is not collaterally estopped by district court’s sentencing finding that defendant had not fraudulently intended to evade the payment of taxes. (810, 820) George Maciel appealed from a decision of the United States Tax Court that upheld an IRS Notice of Deficiency for the 1990, 1991, and 1992 tax years. In a separate proceeding, Maciel pled guilty to criminal tax charges. As part of its sentencing decision in that case, the federal district court found that Maciel had not fraudulently intended to evade the payment of taxes. Maciel contended that collateral estoppel (issue preclusion) required the tax court to adopt the finding of the district court at Maciel's criminal sentencing hearing that Maciel did not intend to evade taxation. The 9th Circuit previously had not expressly decided whether, or under what circumstances, the parties to a civil suit should be bound by findings previously made at a criminal sentencing hearing. Following the Second Circuit, the Court held that it is presumptively improper for a court to give preclusive effect to the findings of a sentencing court during subsequent civil litigation. Collateral estoppel promotes judicial economy and protects parties from the burden of successive litigation by barring the relitigation of issues in certain circumstances, where an issue is “actually litigated and necessarily decided, after a full and fair opportunity for litigation, in a prior proceeding.” A court must compare the procedures in the prior and subsequent actions, and if procedural opportunities unavailable in the first action could readily cause a different result in the second action, then the results of the first action generally should not be given preclusive effect. The court also must consider the parties' incentives to litigate in the two actions; if a party had good reason not to contest an issue vigorously during the first action and did not, in fact, vigorously contest the issue, that party generally should be entitled to relitigate the issue during the second action. The Second Circuit had observed that a plenary civil trial affords a defendant procedural opportunities that are unavailable at sentencing and that could command a different result, and that the incentive to litigate a sentencing finding is frequently less intense, and certainly more fraught with risk, than it would be for a full-blown civil trial. That Circuit in a civil forfeiture case rejected a former criminal defendant's attempt to invoke collateral estoppel against the government, holding that the U.S. Customs Service could pursue a civil forfeiture action despite a sentencing judge's previous finding that the currency at issue had been lawfully obtained. According to the court, the government had not had a sufficiently fair opportunity to litigate the relevant issues because procedural mechanisms crucial to the Government's ability to gather probative evidence in the civil forfeiture action were either not available, or were available to a lesser degree, in the sentencing proceedings, including compelling the defendant to testify. At most, that decision indicated that a sentencing finding may be entitled to collateral estoppel effect in subsequent civil litigation when fairness and efficiency considerations support preclusion. In Maciel’s case, the court held that he failed to overcome the presumption against giving collateral estoppel effect to a sentencing finding. The parties understood that the criminal and civil actions against Maciel were proceeding on separate tracks, with the Department of Justice spearheading the criminal prosecution and the IRS determining Maciel's civil liability. Both Maciel and the government recognized that the IRS would have an opportunity after the criminal proceedings concluded to investigate Maciel's conduct and assess civil penalties. In his plea agreement, Maciel expressly agreed to pay all taxes and penalties that may be due, as finally determined by an IRS audit process and any administrative or judicial process. During the sentencing hearing itself, Maciel's counsel acknowledged that the issue of Maciel's outstanding tax liability and penalties remained pending on the civil level. Finally, the government had virtually no incentive to litigate the fraud issue at sentencing, properly recognizing that pressing for a longer sentence would have been inconsistent with the terms of the plea agreement. Had the government strenuously argued that Maciel had acted fraudulently, knowing that a finding of fraud could have subjected Maciel to a higher adjusted offense level, Maciel legitimately could have cried foul. Under these circumstances, giving preclusive effect to the sentencing court's finding would effectively punish the government for honoring its plea agreement, a counterintuitive result. Maciel v. C.I.R., 2007 WL 1630132 (9th Cir. 2007) (June 7, 2007).

9th Circuit denies downward sentencing departure for state court civil forfeiture. (820) Defendant was sentenced to 120 months in prison for manufacturing metham​phetamine. A state court had civilly forfeited certain property in connection with the same transactions that resulted in his federal conviction. Therefore, defendant moved under 28 U.S.C. §2255 to “correct” his sentence by awarding a downward departure to account for the punishment already imposed by the state civil forfeiture. The Ninth Circuit did not decide whether such a departure would ever be appropriate (although it intimated that it might). Rather, it held that defendant could not obtain a downward departure through a petition for collateral review. Defendant failed to raise the departure issue at sentencing, and was complaining that the district court erred by failing to depart on this ground sua sponte. The appellate court noted the “wide and unreview​able discretion” afforded sentencing judges in deciding whether to depart downward in a particular case, and concluded that the district court considering the §2255 motion “could not have given [defendant] the relief he asks in this proceeding.” U.S. v. E’Vett, 112 F.3d 517 (9th Cir. 1997) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. E’Vett, 112 F.3d 517 (9th Cir. 1997) (table) (unpublished)."
9th Circuit says guidelines do not allow for departure for a civil forfeiture. (820) The district court departed downward one level because defendant lost his family home in civil forfeiture proceedings after he was con​victed of manufacturing marijuana plants. On appeal, the 9th Circuit agreed with the 3rd Circuit's opinion in U.S. v. Shirk, 981 F.2d 1382, 1397 (3d Cir. 1992), vacated on other grounds in light of Ratzlaf v. U.S., 114 S.Ct. 655 (1994), that a court may not base a downward departure on the fact that defen​dant has had property taken by civil forfei​ture. As noted in Shirk, the guidelines state in §5E1.4 that "forfeiture is to be im​posed . . . as provided by statute." This means that the Commission viewed monetary forfeiture as entirely distinct from the issue of imprisonment. In a footnote, the court noted that the Supreme Court in Austin v. U.S., 509 U.S. 602 (1993) held that forfeit​ure is a form of punishment which is subject to the limitations of the Excessive Fines Clause of the 8th Amendment. The fact that a given of​fense may result in several types of punish​ment "does not restrict the power of Congress to pro​vide, within Constitutional boundaries, how the various types of punishment are to be imposed." U.S. v. Crook, 9 F.3d 1422 (9th Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Crook, 9 F.3d 1422 (9th Cir. 1993)."
10th Circuit finds administrative forfeiture no basis for sentencing departure. (820) Defendant was convicted of cocaine trafficking offenses, and the DEA forfeited personal property, including a truck, a camper, and $1,493 in cash. At sentencing, she requested a downward departure from her sentence on the ground that the forfeitures were a “mitigating circumstance of kind, or to a degree, not adequately taken into consideration by the Sentencing Commission.” 18 U.S.C. §3553(b). The Tenth Circuit joined the Third, Fourth, Seventh, and Ninth Circuits in holding that “a forfeiture of defendant’s property does not constitute a basis for downward departure” under §3553(b) and U.S.S.G. §5K2.0. The court emphasized the observation of several other circuits that the fact of forfeiture “does not demonstrate the reduced culpability that might warrant a reduction” in sentence. U.S. v. Coddington, 118 F.3d 1439 (9th Cir. 1997).xe "U.S. v. Coddington, 118 F.3d 1439 (9th Cir. 1997)."
10th Circuit reverses special assess​ment imposed on forfeiture counts. (820) Defen​dant was convicted of sev​eral fraud and money laundering counts. In addition, pur​suant to 18 U.S.C. §982, the jury or​dered the forfeiture of certain items which de​fendant had purchased with fraudulently ob​tained money. The 10th Circuit ruled that the dis​trict court erroneously ordered de​fendant to pay a $50 mandatory special as​sessment on each of the forfeiture counts. Because he could not have been imprisoned for the forfeiture convictions under §982, he should not have been ordered to pay the $50 special as​sessments, which apply only to felonies. U.S. v. Lovett, 964 F.2d 1029 (10th Cir. 1992). xe "U.S. v. Lovett, 964 F.2d 1029 (10th Cir. 1992)."
11th Circuit finds criminal forfeiture count does not constructively amend substantive charges of indictment. (820) Defendant pled guilty to a violation of 21 U.S.C. §860 (distributing or manufacturing drugs near a school), and then sought reduction of his Sentencing Guidelines offense level pursuant to the so-called “safety valve” provision, U.S.S.G. §5C1.2. However, §5C1.2 does not apply to violations of §860. Defendant attempted to argue that the forfeiture count in his indictment referred to violations of 21 U.S.C. §841, to which the safety valve can apply. However, the Eleventh Circuit held that the forfeiture count did not work a constructive amendment of the substantive count to which defendant pled guilty. He was not eligible for a safety valve reduction. U.S. v. Anderson, 200 F.3d 1344 (11th Cir. 2000).xe "U.S. v. Anderson, 200 F.3d 1344 (11th Cir. 2000)."
11th Circuit reaffirms that forfeiture is not a basis for downward sentencing departure. (820) Defendant, a physician, was convicted of conspiring to illegally dispense controlled substances. As part of his plea, defendant agreed not to contest the government’s subsequent civil forfeiture action seeking $50,000 in criminal proceeds. The Eleventh Circuit held that civil forfeiture can never be the basis for a downward departure under the Federal Sentencing Guidelines; it is a prohibited factor. U.S.S.G. §5E1.4. U.S. v. Hoffer, 129 F.3d 1196 (11th Cir. 1997).xe "U.S. v. Hoffer, 129 F.3d 1196 (11th Cir. 1997)."
New York district court holds defendant not entitled to substantial assistance motion for cooperation in civil forfeiture. (820) Defendant was convicted of narcotics offenses and received a reduction in his sentence from 240 months to 90 months for his substantial assistance to the government in prosecuting his confederates. Thereafter, he assisted federal prosecutors in Puerto Rico in obtaining sizeable civil forfeitures from another drug trafficker. He had been expressly told in advance by the government that it would not move for any additional sentence reduction based on cooperation in a civil forfeiture matter. Nevertheless, he moved for a reduction and alleged that the government acted in bad faith by declining to file a Rule 35 motion. The S.D. N.Y. district court denied his motion and held that the decision to request a substantial assistance sentence reduction rests in the discretion of the prosecutor. A court will not second-guess the prosecutor’s decision not to seek a reduction absent a substantial showing that the refusal was based on an unconstitutional motive such as race or religion, neither of which was demonstrated or alleged. United States v. Garcia, 2000 WL 489703, (S.D. N.Y. 2000)(not reported in F.Supp.) 

Ohio District Court holds forfeiture of assets not ground for downward departure. (820) Defendant pleaded guilty to structuring currency transactions and agreed to forfeit $414,700 in cash. He argued that the size of the forfeiture was so great that he should be entitled to a downward departure on his sentence of incarceration. The district court, while noting that the Sixth Circuit had not yet addressed the issue, joined the Third, Fourth, Seventh, Ninth, and Tenth Circuits in holding that forfeiture is a factor “expressly considered” in the Guidelines, see U.S.S.G. §5E1.4, and thus cannot be a ground for departure. U.S. v. Shalash, 36 F.Supp.2d 1013 (S.D. Ohio 1999).xe "U.S. v. Shalash, 36 F.Supp.2d 1013 (S.D. Ohio 1999)." 

Pennsylvania District Court finds no conflict of interest when defendant’s lawyers want to be paid. (820) Petitioner sought relief from his conviction and sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §2255. He argued that his attorneys had a conflict of interest because they were paid for their services. Petitioner contended that “counsels’ status as paid attorneys was an actual conflict of interest because it may have prevented [them] from informing the Petitioner that he might receive a more lenient sentence by offering their fees as further forfeiture.” The district court denied the motion, noting that acceptance of petitioner’s contention would require courts “to force any defendant subject to a forfeiture action to accept the services of a public defender because of the potential that a private attorney might be interested in the property being forfeited.” The court also observed that petitioner’s sentence would not have been different in this case had the forfeiture amount been larger. [Ed. Note: One implication of the court’s opinion is that a defendant might be entitled to a lower sentence based on the amount of forfeiture. The weight of authority on this point is to the contrary.] U.S. v. Martinson, 1998 WL 111801 (E.D. Pa. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. Martinson, 1998 WL 111801 (E.D. Pa. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Article urges consideration of civil forfeitures at sentencing. (820) Sandra Guerra argues that certain civil forfeitures actually serve the purposes commonly pursued by the criminal law. The forfeiture statutes should be reformed to permit only remedial forfeitures to be brought in civil actions, with punitive forfeitures permitted only after conviction for a criminal offense. Even without this reform, sentencing judges should depart downward to take account of any punitive forfeiture imposed on a defendant, and the Sentencing Commission should amend the guidelines to require judges to take account of such forfeitures. Sandra Guerra, Reconciling Federal Asset Forfeitures and Drug Offense Sentencing, 78 Minnesota L. Rev. 805-56 (1994).
